Fa?, 0™ 2™, v
Ay T
- e

Oakland-Alameda County
Coliseum Authority

OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY
Zoom Meeting
NOTICE AND AGENDA
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

September 16, 2022
Friday 8:30 a.m.

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.
When: Sep 16, 2022 08:30 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
Taopic: OACCA Board Meeting 9/16/22

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/873671977797pwd=TnBidHRmRWecxeTZIcEStTURF Sjdwdz09
Passcode: 727224

Or One tap mobile :

US: +16699006833,,87367197779#,,,,*727224# or +166944490171, 873671977794#,,,*727224#
Or Telephone:

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

US: +1 669 900 6833 or +1 669 444 9171 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 719 359 4580 or +1 253 215
8782 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 309 205 3325 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 386
347 5053 or +1 564 217 2000 or +1 646 931 3860

Webinar |ID: 873 6719 7779

Passcode: 727224

International numbers available: hitps://us06web.zoom.us/u/kduaS8Rfl

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. ACTION ITEM

RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS REGARDING SOCIAL DISTANCING AND PUBLIC

HEALTH ARISING FROM THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC WHICH WARRANT THE
CONTINUATION OF REMOTE (TELECONFERENCED) PUBLIC MEETINGS BY THE
AUTHORITY UNDER THE BROWN ACT

4. OPEN FORUM



5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

6. REPORTS

6a. Executive Director Report

1. Oakland Roots and Oakland Soul
2. Arena Naming Rights
3. AEG Agreement Amendment

6b. General Manager Report

7. NEW BUSINESS
RESOLUTION RATIFYING AND APPROVING CHANGES TO THE SECOND
AMENDMENTTO AGREEMENT WITH AEG MANAGEMENT OAKLAND, LLC FOR
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE COLISEUM COMPLEX FOR A SPECIFIED TERM.

B. ADIOURNMENT




OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY
RESOLUTION NO. 202212

RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS REGARDING SOCIAL DISTANCING AND PUBLIC
HEALTH ARISING FROM THE COViID-19 PANDEMIC WHICH WARRANT THE

CONTINUATION OF REMOTE (TELECONFERENCED) PUBLIC MEETINGS 8Y THE
AUTHORITY UNDER THE BROWN ACT

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement ("JPA
Agreement") between the City of Oakland ("City") and the County of Alameda (“County”)
established the Qakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority (*Authority”) whose powers are
exercised by a Board of Commissicners ("Board™) appointed by the City and the County; and

WHEREAS, the Governor declared a state of emergency due to COVID-19 on March 4,
2020, which state of emergency is continuing; ard

WHEREAS, due to the COVID-19 variants, which have been circulating in Alameda
County and nationwide, many pandsmic restrictions, including on-going recommendations for
social distancing as one method to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission, remain in place;
and

WHEREAS, public mestings involve many people in shared indoor spaces for extended
periods of time, where close contact raises the risk of spread of COVID-19, where there is a
need to allow those who are immunocompromised or unvaccinated to participate in public
meetings safely and fully, and where there remains a challenge of fully asceraining and
ensuring compliance with vaccination and other safety recommendations at such meetings; and

WHEREAS, remote or teleconference meelings are consistent with the California
Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CalfOHSA) Emergency Temporary Standards
requirement that emplayers train and instruct employees that the use of social distancing helps
combat the spread of COVID-19 (B Cal. Code Regs. 3205(c}{5)(D);

WHEREAS, on September 18, 2021 the Governor signed into law Assembly Bill 361 (AB
381, Chapter 185, Statutes of 2021) which amended the Brown Act to allow for continued use of
teleconferenced meetings by Brown Act bodies without providing a physical location for the
public through January 31, 2024, under certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the permitting conditions in AB 361 include factors such as a continued
declaration of emergency, and findings by the local legislative bady every 30 days that meeting
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees or that state or local
officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners does hereby
resolve, declare and determine as foliows:

A That the Authority finds that the public health, safety and welfare support
continual social distancing as a result of the transmissibility of the COVID-18 virus, such that in-
person meetings create a health risk.



B. That the Authority will continue to meet virtually to allow its members and
members of the public to avoid exposure to COVID-18 and maintain social distancing.

C. While meeting virtually the Authority will adhere to the applicable open meeting
requirements, including those in AB 361.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the goveming board of the Oakland-Alameda County
Coliseumn Authority, this 16th day of September, 2022, by the following majonty vote:

Ayes:
MNoes:
Absent:

NATE MILEY, CHAIR
ATTEST.

SECRETARY



QOakland-Alameda County
Coliseum Authority
Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority
July 15, 2022

Zoom Board Meeting Minutes
CALL TO ORDER
Commissioner Haubert ¢alied the meeting to order at 8:38 a.m.

ROLL CALL
Chair Miley Commissioner Thompson
Commissioner Baker Commissioner Vukasin

Commissioner Iglesias
Commissioner Haubert

ACTION ITEM

RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS REGARDING SOCIAL DISTANCING AND PUBLIC
HEALTH ARISING FROM THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC WHICH WARRANT THE
CONTINUATION OF REMOTE (TELECONFERENCED) PUBLIC MEETINGS BY THE

AUTHORITY UNDER THE BROWN ACT was submitted for approval. Commissioner
Thompson moved to accept, and Commissioner Haubert seconded the motion
Roll Call :Commissioner Baker, Iglesias, Haubert, Thompson, Vukasin, and Miley approved.
The motion was approved by & aye votes.

OPEN FORUM
No Speakers

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
The minutes for June 17, 2022, was submitted for approval. Commissioner Thompson moved

to approve, and Commissioner iglesias seconded the motion. Roll Call: Commissioners:
Baker, Iglesias, Haubert, Vukasin, Thompson and Miley approved. The motion was approved
by & aye votes.

Reports

6,A

Executive Director Henry Gardner updated the board on a 4* of July incident that occurred at
the Coliseum Stadlum during an Oakland A’s game . The actual incident happened one mile



away from stadium. Melissa Wilk reported on a County employee that was injured. Ms. Wilk
informed the board 6 people were injured and all are recovering from the accident.

ED Gardner advised the board on a potential memorial service for the Hells Angels that may
be heid at the Coliseum Complex. ED Gardner updated the board on EBMUD sewer line
project/repairs on Coliseum Complex premises. ED Gardner informed the OACCA board will
be on recess in August. The next scheduled board meeting is September 16, 2022, ED Gardner
addressed the renewal of his contract agreement with OACCA.

6.B

General Manager Nicole Strange reported to the board on canceled, postponed and added
upcoming events and concerts. Ms. Strange reported on a 1 day July 17, free event for
Alameda County residents by appointment only to bring household hazardous and waste
materials items for disposal.

7. NEW BUSINESS

7a. RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE THIRD
AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES BETWEEN THE
OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISUEM AUTHORITY AND HENRY L. GARDNER,
EXTENDING THE TERM FOR UP TC ONE YEAR AND INCREASING THE
COMPENSATION BY 4.5% TO $202,265.00, WITH A $313.50 MONTHLY
AUTOMOBILE ALLOWANCE. was submitted for approval. Commissioner Miley
moved to approve, and Commissioner Iglesias seconded the motion.
Commissioners: Baker, Haubert, Iglesias, Thompson, Vukasin, and Miley
approved. The motion was approved by € aye votes,

ADJOURNMENTY
Meeting adjourned at 9:07 a.m.

Erin Reseman /Secretary



September 16, 2022
Honorable Chairperson Nate Miley and Commissioners of the Authority

6.a

1. Oakland Roots and Oakland Soul

Ozkland Roots and Oakland Soul soccer organization has met with staff to inquire about a
possible lease/license for interim use of the Coliseum parking lot or the Malibu ot for men's and
women's soccer teams while they search for a permanent site for their games. We have
informed them that use of the Coliseum parking lot presents some major logistical issues when
we have dual events at the Arena and the Stadium where parking is tightly constrained. Under
those circumstances, we need virtually all of the parking spaces at the complex. We believe,
however, we can accommodate interim use at the Malibu site without unduly limiting parking
availabifity at the main parking lot. The Malibu site has a number of challenges that will have to
be overcome in order to accommodate the Roots' needs.

Oakland Roots and Oakland Soul is seeking an agreement for a term up to ten (10) years. The
JPA, through AEG, manages use of the Malibu site and any use that requires a lease or license
would require the approval of the City and the County. At the current time, neither the City nor
the County has an agreement to dispose its legal interest in the Malibu site. Once the bonds are
retired in 2026, the JPA will most likely be dissolved. There are several legal, technical, logistical,
environmental, management, and operational issues that will need to be addressed to
determine the feasibility of the Malibu lot for soccer use. We support the effort to use the
Malibu lot for soccer games and will continue to work with Roots to address the issues outlined
above,

2. Arena Naming Rights

Woe are working with AEG to focus our attention on securing naming rights for the Arena. It took
months to renegotiate the naming rights for the Stadium with RingCentral and once we
concluded those negotiations we had to shut down all activities at the Coliseum because of the
coronavirus pandemic. That led to having modify the payment structure with RingCentral, which
required a new round of negotiations. Those are now all concluded, we are back operating with
robust events at the Arena, and the time is opportune to actively seek sponsors for naming
rights for the Arena.

We plan to start the process of actively scliciting interest in the naming rights for the Arena by
using AEG to prepare a solicitation package, including its cutreach strategy, to attract the



broadest interest. We believe the market is right to pursue naming rights. No approvai of the
Board is required at this point. We will ask AEG to bring at least two competitive proposals for
any consideration.

3. AEG Agreement Amendment

A resolution has been prepared for your approval ratifying certain changes to the AEG Second
Amendment presented to the Board at the June meeting. The changes include minor edits and
modifications regarding definitions, removing reference to Arena Naming Rights, correcting
ownership regarding Outfront Media, and removing reference to Levy Premium Foodservice for
Arena concessions. The Arena concessions issue is covered in the separate Agreement with Levy.
Staff recommends approval of the resolution.

Respectfully submitted,

Henry L. Gardner



ASM Global Oakland
General Manager's Board Report

September 186, 2022

Event Activity

Added Events:

Bad Bunny — (September 14, 2022) (RingCentral Coliseum)
WWE — (September 18, 2022)

Kehlani — (September 30, 2022)

Wu-Tang Clan & Nas — (October 1, 2022)

Mary J Blige — (October 6, 2022)

Jubin Nautiyal Live — (October 8, 2022)

Disney on Ice — (October 13-16, 2022)

Breakaway Festival — (October 14-15, 2022) (parking lot)
Scorpions — (October 18, 2022)

Luis Conriguez — (October 22, 2022)

Porter Robinson's Second Sky Festival — (October 29, 2022) (parking lot)
Elevation Worship — (November 1, 2022)

Banda MS — (November 4, 2022)

Zac Brown Band — (November 6, 2022)

Royal Comedy Tour — (November 11, 2022)

Shreya Ghoshal — (November 12, 2022)

Wisin Y Yandel — (November 20, 2022)

The Millennium Tour — (November 27, 2022)

Jo Koy — (December 2, 2022)

Postponed Events (new date):

Kapil Sharma —(TBD)
My Chemical Romance — (October 5, 2022)
Rage Against the Machine — (March 3 & 5, 2023)

Cancelled Events:

Anuel AA — (September 10, 2022)
Shawn Mendes — (September 17, 2022)



OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY
RESOLUTION NO. 2022 14

RESOLUTION RATIFYING AND APPROVING CHANGES TO THE SECOND AMENDMENT
TO AGREEMENT WITH AEG MANAGEMENT OAKLAND, LLC FOR MANAGEMENT
SERVICES FOR THE COLISEUM COMPLEX FOR A SPECIFIED TERM.

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement ("JPA
Agreement’} between the City of Oakland ("City") and the County of Alameda (“County’)
established the Oaldand-Alameda County Coliseum Authority (“Authority”) whose powers are
exercised by a Board of Commissioners ("Board") appointed by the City and the County; and

WHEREAS, the Authority and AEG Management Oakland, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company ("AEG”") entered into the Coliseum Complex Management Agreement, dated
June 25, 2012, as amended by the Amendment to Coliseun Complex Management Agreement,
dated April 15, 2016 (the "Amendment”} (coliectively, the “Agreement”), whereby AEG agreed to
provide certain management services for the Complex in accordance with the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Agreement was scheduled to expire on June 30, 2022 and the Authority
and AEG desired to amend certain sections of the Agreement and extend the term of the
Agreement for an additional period of four (4) years, commencing on July 1, 2022 and terminating
at midnight on June 30, 2026, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms of the Agreement;
and

WHEREAS, the Authority Board approved the Second Amendment to the Agreement with
AEG Management Oakland, LLC, on June 17, 2022, amending certain sections of the Agreement
and extending the term of the Agreement for four (4) years to and including June 30, 2026, unless
sooner terminated pursuant to the terms of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, during the Autharity Board meeting on June 17, 2022, the Authority Board
expressed an intent to authorize the Executive Director to make additional minor changes to the
Second Amendment, which changes the Authority Board now desires to ratify and approve; and

WHEREAS, those certain changes made after June 17, 2022 inciude minor typographical
edits and modifications to the definition of “AEG Generated Revenues” contained in Section 1 of
the Agreement that (1) removes the inclusion of an “existing or future naming rights agreement
for the Arana” as such agreement has yet 10 be determired, {2) changes the name of “Foster
Interstate” to reflect its current ownership through “Outfront Media,” and (3) removes the “Arena
Concessions License Agreement with Levy Premium Foodservice Limited Partnership® in the
previously approved Second Amendment to the Agreement with AEG Management Oakland,
LLC,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Authority Board does hereby ratify and
approve the Second Amendment to the Agreement with AEG Management Oakland, LLC,
modified as described in this resolution and as shown in Exhibit A, amending certain sections of
the Agresment and extending the term of the Agreement for faur (4) years to and including June
30, 2026, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms of the Agreement

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the governing board of the Oakland-Alameda County
Coliseurn Authority, this 16th day of September 2022, by the following vote:



Ayes:
Noes:

Absent:

ATTEST:

SECRETARY

NATE MILEY, CHAIR



THIS SECOND AMENDMENT to the Coliseum Complex Management Agreement
“Second Amendment') is entered into as of the 17th day of June, 2022 (the "Second Amendment
Dats"), by and between the QAKLAND ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY, a joint
axercise of powars entity (the “Authority”) and AEG MANAGEMENT OAKLAND, LLC, a Delaware
Iimited liability company, A Divigion of ASM Globkal ("AEG")

RECITALS:

A. WHEREAS, Authority and AEG entered into that certsin Coliseum Complex
Management Agreement, dated June 25, 2012, as amended by that Amendment to Coliseum
Complex Management Agreement, dated April 15, 2016 (the "Amendment’) (collectively, the
"Agreement’), whereby AEG provides certain management services for the Complex In
accordance with the Agreement; ang

B. WHEREAS, the Management Term was scheduled ta expire on June 30, 2022;
and

C. WHEREAS, the Authority and AEG desire to extend the Management Term and
to amend other terns of the Agreement, all subject and pursuant to the ferms and conditions set
forth in this Second Amendment;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of
which are hereby scknowledged, the Authority and AEG agrae as follows:

ACREEMENT:

1. Amended Definitjons. The following definitions contained in Segtion 1 of the Agreement
are amended to read as follows:

‘AEC Generated Revenues” shall mean the total of all revenues ganarated
directly or indirectly from the operation of the Complex In a Fiscal Year, net of
experses attributable to euch revenus, lese all revenues AEG or the Authority
receives andfor uses for operations that are recelved pursuant to (1) the Arbitration
Award against the Golden State Warrlors, the Oakland Athietics Amended and
Restated License Agresment, the RingCentral Naming Rights Agreament, any
license agreement with or for a Women's National Basketball Association (WNBA)
franchises, and the Cutfront Media (formarly Foster Interstate) Project Agreament,
{ii) any concession agreement entered into for foog and beverage concessions at
the Stadium for Cakland Athletics games, other events scheduled under the terms
of the Oakland Athletics Amended and Restated License Agreement or events
scheduled directly under any agreerment {0 which the Authority is a party, or any
successor agreement, (il) any funds paid to AEG directly from funds of the
Authorlty unless ctherwise specifically agraed to in writing of ali parties to the
Agrasrnent.




‘Operpting Expanses” shall mean any and all expenses and expenditures
of whatever kind or nature incurred, directly or indirestly {sxcluding all payments
of any natre which tha Authority, the Chty or the County is obligaied to pey 0 the
Qakiand Athletics or any YWNBA franchisae or 10 whioh the Cakland Athietica or
any WNBA franchisee have rights) by or on the behaif of AEG i promating,
onerating, maintaining end managing the Complex, Including, buf not fimited to:
smpiovee compensation and relaled expenses (e.0., baae ssierlea, bonuses,
saverance and car eliowances), employee beneflis and nelatec costs (eg.,
relocetion and other reisted axpenses pursuant to AEG's parsonnel pollcy manual
(provided that a copy of such policy manusl has Heen provided 10 the Collssumn
Mansger)), parking ang othar finge honefits, supplles, materisi anc parts costs,
costs of any intems and Indepandent contrsctors, edvertieing, marksting and
public relations coste and commissions, janitaris! and cleaning sxpenses, date
processing coste, dues, subscriptions end membership costs, the costs of
procunng and maintaining the instrance referred to in Section 8 of the Agreamant,
amounts expended to procure and maintain parmits and Bcenass, charges, laxes
(not including any taxes Impossd on AEG ralating to Incentive Faes solely by
reasan of ke doing business within the City and the County), excless and fees,
profesaional fees, printing and statonery costs, all event-reigted axpenses (e.g.,
fess payable to promotars and performers, ooats for avent staffing and costs
rolsting to set-up and clean-up), postage and freight costs, aquipment rentai oosts,
coxnputer squipment jeases and line chargas, repaire and maintenance costa
{e.0.. elevators and HVAC), security expanses, utiity and telephone charges,
travel and sntertainment sxpenses {but cnly If such travel and entsriainment
expensas have baen approved in writing in advance by the Colissum Manager,
afler @ written roquest shall have besn pravided to the Gollesum Manager) in
accordance with AEQ's policies {provided that a copy of auch poticies have been
provided to the Coliseum Menager), the cost of empioyee uniforms, eafety
expenses, extarminalor and wasta disposs! costs, costs relating to the
maintenance of signage inventory and systerns, the oost of annusi independent
sudite of the Complex, the cost of compliance with Ivws and reguiaticns, costs
ncumad under agreements, commitments, licenses and coniracts executed in
AEG's namo as agent of the Authority as provided in Section 2.3 {c) of the
Agrssment all a¢ datermined In accordance with generally acceptad scoounting
principise and recognized onh a Tull accruai basIs; prowvided thot Oparating
Expensas ahall not include expenses or expandituras in conrmction with Capitsl
improvements and Capital Equipment purchases, the faes payable pursuant to
Seclion 4.1 of the Agresment and any expaness {1) incurred by AEG pereannel
related to AEG'e corporate business or the businesses of any other fachity
managed by AEG or s AEG Afflllates or {2) relating to AEG parsonns] based in
AEG's comorats headquartars (other than the reasonabia costs of traved by such
comporata of reglons! personne! in connection with AEG's management of the
Complex, which costs shall be Operating Expanses).

“Opereting Revenues™ shali mean any and all revenuea of every kind or nature
derived from owning, operating, managing or promoting the Complex (exciuding
ol revenues of any nature whicn the Authority, tha City or the County are obligated
to collect or are collected on bahaif of tha Oaldend Athistice or any WNBA

i




franchises or to which the Oakdand Athietics or any WNBA franchisee have rights),
Including, but not imited to: Complex's shere of licensa, leass and cancession
tees and rentats, revenues from merchandise swies, advertising saies, aquipmant
rentals, utiity revenues, box offica revenues, parking revenues, food servics and
cancession revenues (however, if such revenues are collected in the firet Instance
by and retained by the conceesionaire, the amount of such revenuee pald by the
concessionairs to the Complex shall ba Inaluded ss Operating Revenues),
convenienca fees, handing fees, Hicketing rebates, svant hospitality packege
revanes, avent premium sealng revenuas, avent
sparisorship/advertising/promotionat  revenues, evant sponsorship  group
salesicommissions, commisaions or other revenuss ffom decorstion and sst-up,
sacurity and other subcontractors (nowsver, if such revenues are collectad in the
first instance by and retained by such subcontractors, the amount of such
ravanuas paid by such contractors 1o the Complex shall be Inciuded as Operating
Revenuss), miscollsneous operstng revenues, revenuss genersted from
saparate agresments with AEG Afflistes parteining to the Complex . snd ntereat
revenusa, Bil a8 determined in accordanca with generally accepted accounting
principlas and recognized on a full accrual basis,

*Team Events” means; (i} alf pressason, regular sesson and playoff
gemes of MLB's Oskland Athietics professionel baseball team snd any other
events parmittad under the Dakiand Athlatios Licanse Agreement, of any
sucosasqr and assign therect: and (8) ail pressesan, requiar season gnd playoff
oumes of & WNBA professional baaketball taam and any other svenis permittad
under a licenee agreement with the WNBA franchise and the Authonity, or any
auccessor and assigns thareof.

2, Manpoaenent Tarn. By the Amendmant to the Collseum Complex Managemant
Agrasment, the partiss exarcised the opfion to mutually extand the inital Management Term 1o
Jung 30, 2022. The Management Tem et forth in Bacdion 2 1 of the Agresment is hereby further
amended to sxdend tha Managemar Term as follows:

The Authority and AEQ hereby agree that the Msnagement Term of this
Agresment is hsraby extended for an edditonal term of four (4) years,

commaencing on July 1, 2022 end terminating at ridnight on June 30, 2028, unless
acaner terminatad pursuant to the teims of the Agreement {the ‘Recotd Rxtanded

dpia i Lanilnt Gauloment. The dollar value that triggers AEC's obligation
ta nbtaln Nds or asmnam for tho tconatruction, instailation or pyrchaae of Capltal Improvemants
and Capitel Equipment In w \s incrassad as follows:

{a) AEG shall pay for, from monsys provided by the Authority, and
consiruct, install or purchase Capital improvemsnts and Capital Equipment

pirsusnt 1o the Capltal improvemants and CapRal Equipment plan deacribed in
Section §.3(c). AEG sha¥ obiain (I} at least three bids with respact {o the

a



conglruction, inetaligtion or purchase of Capital Improvements end Cepital
Equipment the coat of which exoeeds $60,000 and (i) three astimates with respect
to the conatruction, instaiiation or purcriase of Capltsl Improvements and Capltal
Equipmant the cost of which is more than $15,000 byt jess than $50,000

All sther provisions of Secticn 5.8/s) shall remain in ful forge and effect.

41, [ndgmnfiostion. AEG's obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmises tha
Authority, Clty and County in Sedfion 8.7(g) of the Agresment is hereby amended to add arwd
axiand to Colsaum Way Paitners, LLC, and ita governing members, cfficera, agents and

smployess all as provided In the Agresment.
5. General Provielons

54. FEulForea std Effect: Conflist. Except as amended by this Second Amendmant,
the Agreament, as modiied hersin, remains In full force and effect and ia hereby ratified by the
Authority and AEG. in the event of any conflict batwesn tha Agreement and this Second
Armendmaent, the tarms and conditiona of this Second Amandment shall conirol.

52 Cabieized Terma. Capltelized terms not defined herain shall have the same
moaning as set forth In the Agreemant.

53. SuccessOrs.gnd Agsiong. This Second Amerwimant shall be binding upon and
lnure to the baneflt of tha partiss herelo and their helrs, personal representatives, succsssors and
assigns.

54  Enis Adcesment. This Agreament, as amented by the Amendment and this
Seacond Amendment

55. Powerand Authority. AEG has not assigned or trensferrad any intersst In the
Agresamant and has full power and authorlty to execute tis Second Amandsent,

£6. Qounierogiis. This Second Amendment meay ba exscuted In any number of

countemparts, each of which ahgli be deomad an origingl, but afi of which togather ahall sanstitute
one and the aame instrument.

57. Elecironic or Digitai Sloratures. This Second Amendment may be executsd by
slectronic or digital signatures which shall be binding as ariginels.

i
i
4

fl
i



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, tha Authority ang AEG have causet this Second Amendmaent
to be axecuted at of the Seoond Amendment Date.

AUTHORITY:

QAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY,
2 jolnt axercise of powars authority

AEG:

AEG MANAGEMENT QAKLAND, LLC
a Delaware limite¢ ilablity company

MNama: Mm D- ROZ‘“S
Tite: GFO

in ander to induoe Landiord to anter Inta this Sacond Amandment, and without limiting the
genaeraity of any provision of Section 13,15 of the Agreemant (ine “Guaranty”). AEG FACILITIES,
LLC, a Delawsre Umitad tisbilty company, hereby confirms and agreas thst the Guaranty extands
t¢ and includes the guaranty, uncondionalty end withaut limitation, of tha performance of AEG of
its obligations under ths Agreament, as amended by the Amendment and this Second
Amondment, with the sama foroe and effect ag if the amervdsd cbligations had been sat lorth
onrginslly In the Agreement,

AEG FACILITIES, LLC
s Delaware timited llability company

Name: _ Mark D. Rozelis
Tive; CFO




APPROVED A3 TO FORM AND LEGALITY:




